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Ce: PO |(HHS/OCR) &Itf%® R |
(OS/OCR) &1 Regt;

Subject: RE: SC Medicaid GAC complaints: DRL + Next Steps [0)5) |
Thanks Susie! Sounds like a plan!

From:"® KHHS/OCR) &l1t{P)E) ket;
Sent: Thursday, September 29, 2022 10:10 PM

To: Stampul, Barbara (HHS/OCR) &lt;Barbara. Stampul@hhs.gov&gt.; Chirila, Robert
(HHS/OCR) &lt;Robert.Chirila@hhs. gov&gt;; Romero-Escobar, Beatriz (HHS/OCR)
&lt;Beatriz.Romero@HHS .GOV &gt;

Ce: PG (HHS/OCR) &lt{o)®) Kegt:; |(b)(6) |
(OS/OCR) &ItfPX5) Regt;

Subject: SC Medicaid GAC complaints: DRL + Next Steps [©/©)
Hello Southeast colleagues,
Thanks for sending over a draft DRL in the South Carolina Medicaid cases. We have a couple of
recommendations:

b))

I hope this sounds like a plan.[©

Please let us know if you have any questions, and we&#8217;1l address when we get back.
Thanks for all your work on these cases.

From: Stampul, Barbara (HHS/OCR) &lt;Barbara. Stampul@hhs.gov&et;
Sent: Monday, September 26, 2022 12:31 PM

To:® | (HHS/OCR) &1tfP%® Begt;



mailto:lt;Beatriz.Romero@HHS.GOV



mailto:Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov
mailto:Romero@HHS.GOV
mailto:lt;Beatriz.Romero@HHS.GOV



mailto:Beatriz.Romero@HHS.GOV
mailto:Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov
mailto:Alisha.Welch@hhs.gov
mailto:Jamie.Rahn@hhs.gov
mailto:Romero@HHS.GOV
mailto:Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov
mailto:Alisha.Welch@hhs.gov
mailto:Jamie.Rahn@hhs.gov



mailto:Beatriz.Romero@HHS.GOV
mailto:Robert.Chirila@hhs.gov
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

&) iHS/QCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP

From: (FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E90EF156EDQ5483F959D8C4039D9B906-LORDEN, SUS
|(b)(5)
Romero-Escobar, Beatriz {HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Recipients/cn=user8a7a5326 «Beatriz.Romero@HHS.GOV>;

To: Stampul, Barbara {HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF235PDLT Ycn=Recipients/cn=abalebfc28844f3399581d12fbecdfcb-Stampul, Ba
<Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov>

HHS/0QCR) fo=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
FY

DIBOHFZ35PDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdec12ad(974eacababe(32f2b37¢91-Dekervor, D
cC: ooy |

Roman, David (O5/0CR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }fcn=Recipients/cn=user5d5a5775 <David.Roman@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: 5C Medicaid GAC complaints: DRL + Next Steps [(P)5)
Date: 2022/11/08 10:02:42
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

Good morning,

FYl, Jamie said the data request looks great and the MidAtlantic Region has no edits on it.

Thanks,

From: HHS/OCR) <|(b)(6) |
Sent: Monday, November 7, 2022 6:16 PM

To: Romero-Escobar, Beatriz (HHS/OCR) <Beatriz.Romero@HHS.GOV>; Stampul, Barbara (HHS/OCR)
<Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov>

e [HHs/ocR) 47O PO Tiosrocwy
b

10)6)
Subject: RE: SC Medicaid GAC complaints: DRL + Next Steps 1(b)(5) |

Hi Beatriz and Barbara,

Please find attached our minor edits to the data request for thef®}5)

()5}

Appreciate your great work on these cases. On ALL your cases....!

Thanks
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cclP® |HHs/0CR) 7 . |(0s/0CR)
o)
Subject: RE: SC Medicaid GAC complaints: DRL + Next Steps q(b)@ |

Thanks Sounds like a plan!
From{"® (HHS/OCR) 4P)6) |

Sent: Thursday, September 29, 2022 10:10 PM

To: Stampul, Barbara (HHS/OCR} <Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov>; Chirila, Robert (HH5/0OCR)
<Robert.Chirila@hhs.gov>;, Romero-Escobar, Beatriz (HHS/OCR) <Beatriz.Romero@HHS.GOV>
lccib)(e) KHHS/OCR) {©X6) ;[P® (0S/OCR)

(D)(6)

Subject: SC Medicaid GAC complaints: DRL + Next Steps R

Hello Southeast colleagues,

Thanks for sending over a draft DRL in the South Carolina Medicaid cases. We have a couple of
recommendations:

()5}

| hope this sounds like a plan.l(b)(ﬁ) Please let us
know if you have any questions, and we’ll address when we get back.

Thanks for all your work on these cases.

D)6}

From: Stampul, Barbara (HHS/OCR) <Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov>
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the Treatment of Gender Dysphoria

Ron DeSantis, Governor

)
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Literature Review: Introduction

Currently, an abundance of literature and studies on gender dysphoria is available through academic
journals, clinical guidelines, and news articles. Similar to other mental health issues, the material
addresses a broad range of topics consisting of available treatments, etiology (i.e., causes), risks,
benefits, and side effects. Although most stories reported by the media indicate that treatments such as
cross-sex hormones and sex reassignment surgery are the most effective, research reveals that
numerous questions still exist. These include what are the long-term health effects of taking cross-sex
hormones, what are the real causes of gender dysphoria, and how many individuals that transition will
eventually want to revert to their natal sex. Additionally, much of the available research is inconclusive
regarding the effectiveness of sex reassignment treatments with multiple studies lacking adequate
sample sizes and relying on subjective questionnaires. While much of the scientific literature leans in
favor of cross-sex hormones and surgery as options for improving the mental health of individuals with
gender dysphoria, it does not conclusively demonstrate that the benefits outweigh the risks involved,
either short or long-term. What studies do reveal with certainty is that sex reassignment surgery and
cross-sex hormones pose permanent effects that can result in infertility, cardiovascular disease, and
disfigurement. All of this indicates that further research is necessary to validate available treatments for
gender dysphoria. Thus, physicians, who recommend sex reassignment treatment, are not adhering to
an evidence-based medicine approach and are following an eminence-based model.

The following literature review addresses the multiple facets of this condition and presents areas of
ongoing debate and persisting questions. Beginning with the condition’s etiology and continuing with
evaluations of puberty blockers, cross-sex hormones, and surgery, the review explains each area
separately and in context of gender dysphoria at large. Additionally, the review provides an analysis on
available research on mental health outcomes as well as the condition’s persistence into adulthood.
Taken as a whole, the available studies demonstrate that existing gender dysphoria research is
inconclusive and that current treatments are used to achieve cosmetic benefits while posing risky side
effects as well as irreversible changes.






Saleem and Rizvi's review reveal that gender dysphoria’s etiology can have multiple factors, most of
which require treatments and therapies not consisting of cross-sex hormones or surgery. {Saleem and
Rizvi, 2017}.

Out of the research on the condition’s etiology, a large portion focuses on the correlation with ASD. One
of the more substantial studies by Van der Miesen et al published in 2018 evaluates 573 adolescents and
807 adults diagnosed with ASD and compares them to 1016 adolescents and 846 adults from the

general population. The authors’ findings note that adolescents and adults with ASD were approximately
2.5 times more likely to indicate a desire of becoming the opposite sex. Although the methodology used
to reach this conclusion consisted of surveys where respondents had a choice of answering “never,”
“sometimes,” or “often,” the results correspond with those of similar studies. Van der Miesen et al also
indicate that most responses favoring a change in gender responded with “sometimes.” Additionally,
the authors do not state how many in their sample group actually had a gender dysphoria diagnosis.
{Van der Miesen et al, 2018}.

Another study by Shumer et al from 2016 utilizes a smaller sample size (39 adolescents) referred to an
American hospital’s gender clinic. Unlike Van der Miesen et al’s research, Shumer et al evaluate subjects
with a diagnosis of gender dysphoria for possible signs of ASD or Asperger’s syndrome. Their findings
revealed that 23% of patients presenting at the clinic would likely have one of the two conditions.
Possible explanations for the high percentage are the methods used to gather the data. Shumer et al
requested a clinical psychologist to administer the Asperger Syndrome Diagnostic Scale to the parents of
the sample patients, four of whom already had an ASD diagnosis. The authors conclude that the
evidence to support high incidence of gender dysphoria in individuals with ASD is growing and that
further research is needed to determine the specific cause (Shumer et al, 2016).

Research indicating a strong correlation between ASD and gender dysphoria is not the only area where
new studies are emerging. Discussions about the effects of prenatal testosterone levels are also
becoming more prevalent. One such example is Sadr et al’s 2020 study that looks at the lengths of the
index and ring fingers (2D:4D} of both left and right hands of 203 individuals diagnosed with gender
dysphoria. The authors used this method because prenatal testosterone levels can affect the length
ratios of 2D:4D. By comparing the ratios of a group with gender dysphoria to a cohort from the general
population, Sadr et al could assess for any significant difference. Their results indicated a difference in
trans-females who presented with more feminized hands. For trans-males, the difference was less
pronounced. The results for both groups were slight, and the meta-analysis that accompanies the study
notes no statistically significant differences in multiple groups from across cultures. However, Sadr et al
further assert that the evidence strongly suggests elevated prenatal testosterone levels in girls and
reduced amounts in boys may contribute to gender dysphoria, requiring additional research (Sadr et al,
2020).

In addition to biological factors and correlations with ASD, researchers are exploring psychological and
social factors to assess their role in gender dysphoria etiology. This literature examines a range of
potential causative agents, including child abuse, trauma, and peer group influences. One such study by
Kozlowska et al from 2021 explores patterns in children with high-risk attachment issues who also had
gender dysphoria. The authors wanted to assess whether past incidents of abuse, loss, or trauma are
associated with higher rates of persons desiring to transition. As a basis, Kozlowska et al cite John
Bowlby's research on childhood brain development, noting that the process is not linear and depends
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Literature Review: Desistance of Gender Dysphoria and Puberty

Suppression

The World Professional Association for Transgender Health {WPATH} and the Endocrine Society both
endorse the use of gonadotropin releasing hormones (Gn-RH) to suppress puberty in young adolescents
who have gender dysphoria. Both organizations state that the treatment is safe and fully reversible. In
addition, they state that delaying pubertal onset can provide extra time for adolescents to explore the
gender in which they choose to live. The associations further state that puberty suppression is necessary
to prevent the development of primary and secondary sexual characteristics that can inhibit successful
transitions into adulthood {WPATH, 2012; Endocrine Society, 2017). Of the two groups, WPATH offers
clinical criteria an individual should meet to qualify for puberty suppression such as addressing
psychological co-morbidities and assessing whether gender dysphoria has intensified (WPATH, 2012).

Neither organization explains that the majority of young adolescents who exhibit signs of gender
dysphoria eventually desist and conform to their natal sex and that the puberty suppression can have
side effects. Both organizations neglect to mention that using Gn-RH for gender dysphoria by altering
the appearance is not an FDA-approved clinical indication. Furthermore, the research used to justify
puberty suppression is low or very-low quality and little information is available on long-term effects
{Hruz, 2019). Additionally, in his assessment, Quentin Van Meter explained that physical differences
between central precocious puberty and natural onset puberty demonstrate that Gn-RH does not have
permanent adverse effects for those treated for the former but can for the latter such as insufficient
bone-mineral density and neural development (Van Meter, 2022). Also, as recently as May 17, 2022,
during a U.S. Senate Committee on Appropriations hearing, Lawrence Tabak, acting director of the
National Institutes of Health, responded to Senator Marco Rubio, acknowledging that no long-term
studies are available evaluating the effects of puberty blockers when used for gender dysphoria {U.S.
Senate Committee on Appropriations, 2022},

Currently, some studies provide weak support for this treatment but leave too many questions as to its
effectiveness and medical necessity, especially considering how many children decide against
transitioning. In addition, puberty blockers halt development of primary and secondary sexual
characteristics and deny opportunities for adolescents to adapt and become comfortable with their
natal sex. Instead, puberty blockers can serve as a potential “gateway drug” for cross-sex hormones by
denying them the experience of physically maturing (Laidlaw et al, 2018).

A 2013 study by Steensma et al offers data on the percentage of children who opt not to transition after
experiencing gender dysphoria. The authors follow 127 adolescents (mean age of 15 during the
evaluation period} for four years who had been referred to a Dutch gender dysphoria clinic. Qut of this
cohort, 47 (37%; 23 boys and 24 girls) continued experiencing the condition and applied for sex
reassignment treatment. The other 80 adolescents never returned to the clinic. Because this clinic was
the only one that treated gender dysphoria in the Netherlands, Steensma et al assumed that those who
did not return no longer desired transitioning. The study indicates one of the key predictors for
persisting gender dysphoria was the age of first presentation. Qlder adolescents that started going to
the clinic were more likely to persist, while younger adolescents tended not to follow through. Steensma
et al provide further insight into other predicting factors, particularly on how each individual views his or
her gender identity. The authors note that adolescents who “wished they were the other sex” were
more likely to become desisters and that those who “believed that they were the other sex” persisted
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State-Level Coverage Policies

Florida: In April 2022, DOH issued guidance for the treatment of gender dysphoria, recommending that
minors not receive puberty blockers, cross-sex hormones, or sex reassignment surgery. ** The
justification offered for recommending against these treatments is that available evidence is low-quality
and that European countries also have similar guidelines. Accordingly, DOH provided the following
guidelines:

+ “Social gender transition should not be a treatment option for children or adolescents.”

¢ “Anyone under 18 should not be prescribed puberty blockers or hormone therapy.”

» “Gender reassignment surgery should not be a treatment option for children or adolescents.”

s “Children and adolescents should be provided social support by peers and family and seek
counseling from a licensed provider.”

In a separate fact sheet released simultaneously with the guidance, DCH further asserts that the
evidence cited by the federal government cannot establish sex reassignment treatment’s ability to
improve mental health {DOH, 2022).

State Medicaid Programs: Because individual states differ in health services offered, Medicaid programs
vary in their coverage of sex reassignment treatments. The following maps identify states that cover sex
reassignment treatments, states that have no policy, and states that do not cover such treatments.

13 Unlike the federal government, the State of Florida delegates responsibilities for Medicaid and health care
services to five separate agencies (Agency for Health Care Administration, Department of Health, Department of
Children and Families, Department of Elder Affairs, and Agency for Persons with Disabilities}. Each agency has its
own separate head {secretary or surgeon general), which reports directly to the Executive Office of the Governor.
As Florida’s public health agency, DOH oversees all county health departments, medical professional boards, and
numerous health and welfare programs {e.g., Early Steps and Women, Infants, and Children). Because it oversees
the boards, DOH has authority to release practice guidelines.
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State Medicaid programs with coverage decisions regarding puberty blockers:
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Western Europe

Scandinavian countries such as Sweden and Finland have released new guidelines on sex reassignment
treatment for children. In 2022, the Swedish National Board of Health stated that “the risks of hormonal
interventions for gender dysphoric youth outweigh the potential benefits.” With the exception of youths
who exhibited “classic” signs of gender identity issues, adolescents who present with the condition will
receive behavioral health services and gender-exploratory therapy (Society for Evidence Based Gender
Medicine, 2022).

In Finland, the Palveluvalikoima issued guidelines in 2020 stating that sex reassignment in minors “is an
experimental practice” and that “no irreversible treatment should be initiated.” The guidelines further
assert that youths diagnosed with gender dysphoria often have co-occurring psychiatric disorders that
must be stabilized prior to prescribing any cross-sex hormones or undergoing sex reassignment surgery
{Palveluvalikoima, 2020).

The United Kingdom {U.K.) is also reassessing the use of irreversible treatments for gender dysphoria
due the long-term effects on mental and physical health. In 2022, an independent interim report
commissioned by the U.K.'s National Health Service {NHS) indicates that additional research and
systematic changes are necessary to ensure the safe treatment of gender dysphoric youths. These
include reinforcing the diagnosis process to assess all areas of physical and behavioral health, additional
training for pediatric endocrinologists, and informing parents about the uncertainties regarding puberty
blockers. The interim report is serving as a benchmark until the research is completed for final
guidelines (The Cass Report, 2022).

Like state Medicaid programs, health systems across Western Europe also vary in their coverage of sex
reassignment treatment.
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Western European nations’ requirements for sex reassignment surgery:
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In this context, the oge requirement for access to ony medical treotment without consent of parents or of
a public authority. This age may range from 16 to 18 yeors depending on each cauntry's laws.
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Generally Accepted Professional Medical Standards Recommendation
This report does not recommend sex reassignment treatment as a health service that is consistent with
generally accepted professional medical standards. Available evidence indicates that the services are not
proven safe or effective treatments for gender dysphoria.

Rationale

The available medical literature provides insufficient evidence that sex reassignment through medical
intervention is a safe and effective treatment for gender dysphoria. As this report demonstrates, the
evidence favoring “gender affirming” treatments, including evidence regarding suicidality, is either low
or very low quality:

¢ Puberty Blockers: Evidence does not prove that puberty blockers are
safe for treatment of gender dysphoria. Evidence that they improve
mental health and reduce suicidality is low or very low quality.

¢+ Cross-5ex Hormones: Evidence suggesting that cross-sex hormones
provide benefits to mental health and prevents suicidality is low or very
low quality. Rather, evidence shows that cross-sex hormones cause
multipie irreversible physical consequences as well as infertility.

* Sex Reassignment Surgery: Evidence of improvement in mental health
and reduction in suicidality is low or very low quality. Sex reassignment
surgery results in irreversible physical changes, including sterility.

While clinical organizations like the AAP endorse the above treatments, none of those organizations
relies on high quality evidence. Their eminence in the medical community atone does not validate their
views in the absence of quatity, supporting evidence. To the contrary, the evidence shows that the
above treatments pose irreversible consequences, exacerbate or fail to alleviate existing mental health
conditions, and cause infertility or sterility. Given the current state of the evidence, the above
treatments do not conform to GAPMS and are experimental and investigational.

Ancur Do not Concur

Comments:

ol e ohha

o

Depfﬁ"y Secretary for Medicuaid {or designee) Date
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Attachment A: Secretary for the Florida Agency for Health Care Administration’s Letter
to Deputy Secretary Thomas Wallace. 20 April 2022,

Attachment B: Complete text of Rule 59G-1.035, F.A.C.

Attachment C: Romina Brignardello-Petersen, DDS, MSc, PhD and Wojtek Wiercioch,
MSc, PhD: Effects of Gender Affirming Therapies in People with Gender Dysphoria:
Evaluatian of the Best Available Evidence. 16 May 2022.

Attachment D: James Cantor, PhD: Science of Gender Dysphoria and Transsexualism. 17
May 2022.

Attachment E: Quentin Van Meter, MD: Cancerns about Affirmation af an incangruent
Gender in a Child or Adolescent. 17 May 2022,

Attachment F: Patrick Lappert, MD: Surgical Pracedures and Gender Dyspharia. 17 May
2022.

Attachment G: G. Kevin Donovan, MD: Medical Experimentation without Informed
Consent: An Ethicist’s View of Transgender Treatment for Children. 16 May 2022,
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W\ WellCare

Beyond Healthcare. A Better You.
P.O. Box 436000
Louisville, KY 40253

Notice of Appeal Decision

()6}

June 2, 2022

o LA
ID#:

File #{~© |

Request: Reduction Mammoplasty CPT
19318

Dear [©

On May 4, 2022, we received your appeal. This appeal was about; Reduction
Mammoplasty.

An Appeals Review Nurse looked at your request.

We reached this decision: The procedure to make your breasts smaller is not
approved.

We made this decision because the notes say you want smaller breasts so you will
look like a male. The health plan does not cover this kind of procedure. The reasons
for the denial are based on a set of benefits/criteria, which include Kentucky Enrollee
Handbook 2022 Section: Services Not Covered by WellCare of Kentucky

Kentucky law says we cover services that are “medically necessary.” Per 907 KAR
17:020 and 907 KAR 3:130, "medically necessary” means:

» Care or supplies required to meet an enrollee’s medical needs
e The care or supplies must:

CAD_71272E_ State Approved 05152020
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Be right for the enrollee’s medical condition;

Be care accepted by most doctors;

Not be for convenience;

Be in the right amount, at the right place and at the right time; and
Be safe for the enrollee.

o o O 0 0O

This decision will not affect the services or supplies you may need in the future.

You, your doctor, or someone you choose can get a copy of any paperwork used to
make this decision. You can get this at no charge. Call 1-877-389-9457 or write to:

WellCare of Kentucky
Attn: Appeals Department
P.O. Box 436000
Louisville, KY 40253

We also want to let you know that, per 307 KAR 17:035, if your provider gets an
adverse final decision of a denial, in whole or in part, of a health service or claim for
reimbursement related to this service, he or she may ask for an external, independent
third-party review. Your provider must first complete an internal appeal with WellCare
of Kentucky. Provider requests for external review will only be considered for dates of
service on or after December 1, 2016.

If an external, independent third-party review is held, your provider and WellCare of
Kentucky may, depending on the outcome of this review, ask for an administrative
hearing. This is per 907 KAR 17:040.

You do not have to take action if your provider files for an external, independent third-
party review or administrative hearing. This does not affect your appeal rights or right
to ask for a State Fair Hearing.

You Have the Right to Ask for a State Fair Hearing

You have the right to ask for a State Fair Hearing if you do not agree with the decision.
A hearing officer from the Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services will review
our decision. You, a friend, a relative, lawyer, or someone you choose may ask for a
hearing for you. You must give this person permission in writing to act for you.

You must ask for a State Fair Hearing within 120 days from the date of this letter. See
907 KAR 17:010.

If you ask for a hearing to appeal our decision, you may continue to receive these
services. But you must ask for the hearing within 10 days of receiving this notice. You
may have to pay for these services if the hearing officer agrees with WellCare that the
services are not needed.
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You may request a State Fair Hearing at this address:

Office of the Ombudsman
Office of the Ombudsman and Administrative Review
Attn: Medical Appeals and Reconsiderations
275 East Main Street, 2E-O
Frankfort, KY 40621
Phone: 502-564-5497 (TTY 711)
Fax: 502-564-9523

Contact us or the Kentucky Department for Medicaid Services if:
« You want to know if you can ask for a State Fair Hearing on the denial.
=« You want to know if you can still get the care you asked for.
= You want to learn more.

Other things to know:
= You do not have to pay for the State Fair Hearing.
= You have the right to name someone you trust to file a State Fair Hearing for
you. You must give the person permission in writing to do so.

Questions? Just call Customer Service at 1-877-389-9457. TTY users may call 711.
We are here to help you. You can call Monday—Friday, 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.

Sincerely,

Appeals Department
mbsharp

Cc: Dr. David Drake
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Discrimination is Against the Law

WellCare of Kentucky complies with applicable Federal civil rights laws and does not
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, or sex. WellCare of
Kentucky does not exclude people or treat them differently because of race, color, national
origin, age, disability, or sex.

WellCare of Kentucky provides free aids and services to people with disabilities to
communicate effectively with us, such as:

« Qualified sign language interpreters

» Written information in other formats (large print, audio, accessible electronic formats,
other formats)

WellCare of Kentucky also provides free language services to people whose primary language
is not English, such as:

 Qualified interpreters

= Information written in other languages

If you need these services, call us toll-free at 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711}. We're here for your
Monday—Friday from 7 am. to 7 p.m.

If you believe that WellCare of Kentucky has failed to provide these services or discriminated
in another way on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, or sex, you can file a
grievance with:

EEC/Civil Rights Compliance Branch

Cabinet for Health and Family Services

Office of Human Resource Management

275 E. Main St, Mail Stop 5C-D

Frankfort, KY 40621

Telephone: 1-502-564-7770

Fax: 1-502-564-3129

Email/Web: https://chfs.ky.gov/Pages/civil-rights.aspx

You can file a grievance in person or by mail, fax, or email. If you need help filing a grievance,
the EEQ/Civil Rights Compliance Branch is available to help you.

You can also file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Office for Civil Rights, electronically through the Office for Civil Rights Complaint
Portal, available at https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf, or by mail or phone at:
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U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
200 Independence Avenue

SW Room 509F

HHH Building

Washington, D.C. 20201

Telephone; 1-80:0-368-1019, 1-800-537-7697 (TDD)

Complaint forms are available at http:/ /www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html.

ATTENTION: If you speak English, language assistance services,
free of charge, are available to you. Call 1-877-389-9457
(TTY: 710).

ATENCION: Si habla espafiol, tiene a su disposicién servicios
gratuitos de asistencia lingUistica. Llame al 1-877-389-9457
(TTY: 71).

AR AREERERPX  BAllaBEERESED
AR% - BEE 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711)

ACHTUNG: Wenn Sie Deutsch sprechen, stehen Ihnen
kostenlos sprachliche Hilfsdienstleistungen zur Verfugung.
Rufnummer: 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

CHU Y: Néu ban néi Tiéng Viét, ¢ cac dich vu hd trg ngdn
ng{ mién phi danh cho ban. Goi s6 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).
Jasl . olonall @l 31555 &gl Busluall Olads o dsll) S3I Crums S 18] b goda
(TN :TTY) 1-877-389-9457 ¢
ATTENTION : Si vous parlez frangais, des services d’aide

linguistique vous sont proposés gratuitement. Appelez le
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 71)

2| S0 E AIESHAlE %, 20 X|@ MH|AE BB =
0|25t 3 USLIC 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 7T)H 2 2 M35
FAANL .
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Opmierksamkeet: Wann du Deitsch (Pennsylvania German/
Dutch) schwetzscht, kannscht du mitaus Koschte ebber gricke,
ass dihr helft mit die englisch Schprooch. Ruf selli Nummer uff
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

AT SGI; TUTES SUTAT SIeg e W AaTEH! T Har
ATHT FEIAAT HATgL AT TTHT ITAGY § | Bl T8
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 71)|

XIYYEEFFANNAA: Afaan dubbattu Oroomiffa, tajaajila
gargaarsa afaanii, kanfaltiidhaan ala, ni argama. Bilbilaa
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

BHVMAHRHWE: Echum Bbl rOBOpUTE Ha PYCCKOM A3bIKE,
TO BaM JOCTYMHbI HecnnaTHble yCayri Nepesoa. 3BOHUTE
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

PAUNAWA: Kung nagsasalita ka ng Tagalog, maaari kang
gumamit ng mga serbisyo ng tulong sa wika nang walang
bayad. Tumawag sa 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

ICITONDERWA: Nimba uvuga Ikirundi, uzohabwa serivisi zo
gufasha mu ndimi, ku buntu. Woterefona 1-877-389-9457
(TTY: 7N)

OBAVJESTENJE: Ako govorite srpsko-hrvatski, usluge
jeziCke pomod¢i dostupne su vam besplatno. Nazovite
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

AREIR  HAFEZRESNSHE ~ BERHOSEXES
SFRWIIETET 2 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: TN E T~
BRI TITEELS 2T 0
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

AT SG I TUTCES SUTAT SIeg e W AaTEH! T Haf
ATHT FEIAAT HATEL AT TTHT ITAGY § | Bl A8
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711)|

XIYYEEFFANNAA: Afaan dubbattu Oroomiffa, tajaajila
gargaarsa afaanii, kanfaltiidhaan ala, ni argama. Bilbilaa
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

BHVMAHWE: Echum Bbl rOBOpUTE Ha PYCCKOM A3bIKE,
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

AREIR . HAFEZRESNS5E ~ BERHOSEXES
SFRWCIETET 2 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: TN E T~
TR TITEHEL<T2E L 0
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FILED

sl 06 ZGaL\
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
CABINET FOR HEALTH AND FAMILY SERVICES DIV. OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS
DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS
HEALTH SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS BRANCH
Administrative Case No. DMS 22-0323

IN RE:[”®

Denial of Coverage for Reduction Mammoplasty

NOTICE OF HEARING
AND ORDER SETTING PREHEARING CONFERENCE

ALL PERSONS RECEIVING THIS SHALL TAKE NOTICE{"® a/k/a
(DHB}

has requested a hearing to challenge a denial of coverage for reduction

mammoplasty by the WellCare of Kentucky (WellCare), THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED:

I, THE PARTIES SHALL APPEAR FOR A PREHEARING
CONFERENCE ON MONDAY, JULY 18, 2022 at 1:00 PM ET/12:00

PM CT. Persons attending the conference shall call the Division of

Administrative Hearing’s conference line at [PX6) and input
(D)6}

participant code Callers will be placed on hold until the

Hearing Officer starts the conference. The parties shall call the Division of

Administrative Hearings at [P© if there is a problem. KRS
13B.070.

2. THE PURPOSE OF THE PREHEARING CONFERENCE SET ABOVE
SHALL BE TO SCHEDULE A HEARING DATE AND TIME CONVENIENT TO ALL
THE PARTIES, AS REQUIRED BY KRS 13B.050(1). The Hearing Officer shati also consider
alternative hearing sites (if allowed by law), motions, stipulations, evidence, witnesses, cxhibits,
settlement or mediation, and any other action that will promote a prompt and orderly hearing. KRS
13B.050(1), .080(t).

3. THE PARTIES SHALL FILE ANY WRITTEN RESPONSE TO A MOTION with
the Division of Administrative Hearings, at the address below, AT LEAST FIVE (5) BUSINESS
DAYS after the motion is stumped filed. THE PARTIES SHALL NOT FILE A REPLY unless
specifically ordered by the Heuring Officer.




4, THE HEARING will be the opportunity for all parties to offer evidence for or
against Anthem’s determination. At the hearing, parties may present witnesses and exhibits,
examine all documents and records presented, make argument without undue interference,

question or contest evidence, and confront and cross-examine witnesses. KRS 13B.050(3).

5. THIS CASE HAS BEEN ASSIGNED to Hearing Officer Matthew Mooney for
hearing. Hearing Officer Mooney’s mailing address is:
DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS
HEALTH SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS BRANCH

105 SEA HERO ROAD, SUITE 2
FRANKFORT, KY 40601

KRS 13B.050(3)(b).

6. THE LAW PROHIBITS A HEARING OFFICER FROM TALKING TO ONE
PARTY ALONE without all other parties being present. KRS 13B.100. THE PARTIES SHALL
DIRECT all questions about this Notice and Order, this case, filings or motions filed, and requests
to reschedule, to the DAH staff by fax at 502-573-1014, or by phone at 502-564-6621, or by email
at CHFS.HSAHB @ky.gov.

7. THE CONTACT INFORMATION FOR THE APPELLANT is:

b)(6} |

5Y6) |
5Y0)

Phone: ()6}

Email:
Appellant

8. THE CONTACT INFORMATION FOR THE APPELLEE'S COUNSEL is:

Joyce A. Merritt

Samantha T. Nance

Embry Merritt Shaffar Womack PLLC
201 East Main Street, Suite 1402
Lexington, KY 40507

Phone: (859) 543-0453

Fax: (800) 505-0113

Email: jovce merritt@emwnlaw.com
Email: samantha.nance @emwnlaw.com



mailto:samantha.nance@emwnlaw.com
mailto:joyce.merritt@emwnlaw.com
mailto:CHFS.HSAHB@ky.gov

KRS 13B.050(3)(c).

G . . .
(026} administrative

9. THE FACTUAL GROUNDS for Appellant

claim s set forth in the request for hearing and attached documents. Copies of the request are
attached to and made a part of this Notice by reference. KRS 13B.050(3)(d).

10. THE FOLLOWING STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS relating to this dispute
govemn this case: 907 KAR 1:835, 907 KAR 1:563, KRS Chapter 13B. Copies of these laws are
available in local county and city law libraries and from the Legislative Research Commission in
Frankfort, Kentucky and on the Internet at https.//legislature.ky.gov/pagesf/index.aspx. KRS
13B.050(3)(e).

1i. THE PARTIES HAVE THE RIGHT TO COUNSEL in this case, at their own

expense. An individual person is not required to have legal counsel and may speak for himself.
However, corporate entities are required to have an attomey appear in this matter. Kentucky Bar
Ass’n v. Henry Vogt Machine Co.. Inc., 416 S.W. 2d 727 (Ky. 1967). Information about free legal
help may be available at local DCBS offices, the Kentucky Bar Association, and at local Legal
Services offices. KRS 13B.050(3)}(f). ’

12.  THE PARTIES SHALL FILE ALL ORIGINAL EXHIBITS, MOTIONS AND
OTHER DOCUMENTS by mailing them to DAH at the addresses and numbers given below. The
filing party also shall send a copy of anything filed to every other party at the addresses and
numbers listed in this Notice and Order. KRS 13B.080(2).

13.  EACHPARTY SHALL FILE A LIST OF WITNESSES AND EXHIBITS AND A
COPY OF EVERY EXHIBIT the party intends to use at the hearing AT LEAST FIVE (5)
BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE THE HEARING. The parties also shall allow other parties o inspect
any document or physical evidence they have relating to the issues in dispute, including any case
files, forms, photographs, reports, or other documents used to support the disputed action or
decision. In addition, Anthem shall allow the Appellant to look at any exculpatory information it
possesses. Confidential information shali not be used or considered at the hearing, except as
allowed by law. KRS 13B.050(3)(g), .090(3).

14,  THE HEARING OFFICER MAY HOLD ANY PARTY IN DEFAULT THAT
FAILS TO ATTEND OR PARTICIPATE IN PROCEEDINGS AS REQUIRED OR TO OBEY
AN ORDER. On a default, the Hearing Officer may conduct proceedings without the defaulting _


https://legislature.ky.gov/pages/index.aspx

party und decide this case based solely on the opposing party’s evidence or may issue a summary
order resolving this matter. KRS 13B.050(3)(h).
SO NOTICED AND ORDERED this July 1, 2022.

IL /4 L z%t%

MATTHEW L. MOONEY, HEARIN CER
DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE I@GS
HEALTH SERVICES ADMIN HEARINGS BRANCH
105 SEA HERO ROAD, SUITE 2

FRANKFORT, KY 40601

Tel: 502-564-6621 / Fax: 502-573-1014

Email: CHFS HSAHB @ky.gov

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify this Notice and Order was filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings, and
a copy served BY US. MAIL, CERTIFIED, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED, and by

electronic mail with delivery and read receipt requested as indicated, cn July , 2022, on:

b))

Phone:[?1®)
Email:
Appellant

Joyce A. Merriti

Samantha T. Nunce

Embry Merritt Shatfar Womack PLLC
201 East Main Street. Suite 1402
Lexington, KY 40507

Email; joyee.merritt @ emwnlaw.com
Email: swantha.nance @emwnliw.com
Counsel for the Appellee
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: |
Noble, Amy N (CHFS)
a |
1 Dienst, Richard D (CHFS)

From:

Sent: Manday, June 6, 2022 2:29 PM
To: CHFS OMB Constituent Services
Ce: - Noble, Amy N {CHFS)

Subject i RE: Wellcare: Appeal
’ I

. i :
We can follow up and see if they want to submit a state fair hearing request...which is the next step after the denial of
the interna;l MC(? appeal.

Rick : J

|

From: CHFS OM? Constituent Services <ConstituentServices@ky.gov>
Sent: Monday, June 6, 2022 2:24 PM

To: Dienst,; Richard D {CHFS) <Richard.Dienst@ky.gov>

Subject: Wellcarg: Appeal

|
Hi Rick,
This constituent is saying she wants Lo appeal the decision on the CPT code for Wellcare. Is this something you.can look
into? ' :
Thanks, . | i
ﬁ | |
o Pasteano
Fxecutin c---\d\-'i:-éxr
Comstitnent Seryjives
e nflljh- odpadsiam and ddministrativ e Review
Cabiner {or Health and Family Seryiees
275 Bast Main 51, 21-0
Franklore, KY -Mi621
Office: (302) 3645197
el #:l(b)(ﬁ) |
CONFIDENTIALETY NOTICE : This email message, including any atlachments, is for the sole use of the intended racigieni(s) and may contain

confidentizl and peivileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. ! you are not the ntended
recipient, please contact me immediately by reply email and destray all copies of the oviginal message.

From: Hockehsm th Pane, Angela D (Gov Office) <Angela.HockensmithPane ®ky.gov>
Sent: Monglay, Ju{ne 6, 2022 10:55 AM

Ta: CHFS OMB Constituent Services <ConstituentServices AoV

Subject: FW: Ang;ela shared a message with you

Please send to a;ipropriate staff to address. Thanksl|
|

From: iConstituel!'lt notifications « overnor@ky.gov

Sent: Monday, June 6, 2022 9:02 AM

To: Hockensmith Pane, Angela D (Gov Office} <Angela.HockensmithPane @ky.gov>
Subject: Angela shared a message with you
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Plan name; !
'Medi,L:aid

|
|
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. Contact Name:

[(b)(e) J |
Contact Email: f
B0 J

Contact Phone Number:

Fb)(e) J

Contact Address: !

D16}

T '
S
| Subject: Request for [LEVEL 2 Appeal]
o .
) |

' To Wh‘lom it May Concern:

]
. l'am vJ.,riting to request'a LEVEL 2 appeal. | wish to appeal the decision relating to
CPT code for Authorization|”"® CaselD#©®

My pla‘in's exclusion of coverage of transgender-related care should not govern this
decisicin as such an exclusion is prohibited by the Affordable Care Act - instead,
WellCdre must evaluaté this decision on the basis of medical necessity. Wellcare
should approve my request for precertification of code (016) n the basis of the
medicél necessity documented by my medical providers and duly provided in my
initial request. i

!
My pla'p's current exclusion of coverage of transgender-related care, which dictated

' WellCares denial of my precertification request, is prohibited by the Affordable Care
Act. | |
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1

to ado pt formally this well-accepted interpretation of discrimination “on the basis of

"

s5ex.

The rule goes on to explain:

"OCR proposed to apply basic nondiscrimination principles in evaluating whether a
covered entity’s denial of a claim for coverage for transition-related care is the
product of discrimination. We noted that based on these principles, an explicit,
categorical (or automatic) exclusion or limitation of coverage for all health services
n:elateﬁli to gender transition is unlawful on its face under paragraph (b)(4); in singling
out the entire categony of gender transition services, such an exclusion or limitation
systematicaily denies services and treatments for transgender individuals and is

" prohihited discrimination on the basis of sex.

h}iorec:iver, we proposed in § 92.207(b)(5) to bar a covered entity from denying or
Ii‘mitinb coverage, or denying a claim for coverage, for specific health services related
to genider transition where such a denial or limitation results in discrimination
against a transgender individual. In evaluating whether it is discriminatory to deny or
limit airequest for coverage for a particular service for an individual seeking the
service as part of transition-related care, we provided that OCR will start by inquiring
whether and to what extent coverage is available when the same service is not

relate ] to gender transition. If, for example, an issuer or State Medicaid agency
dfenies; a claim for coverage for a hysterectomy that a patient's provider says is
medicially necessary to treat gender dysphoria, OCR will evaluate the extent of the
chereid entity’s coverage policy for hysterectomies under other circumstances. We
noted that OCR will also carefully scrutinize whether the covered entity’s explanation
for the;i denial or limitation of coverage for transition-related care is legitimate and
not a pretext for discrimination.”

WefICafre routinely covers mastectomies and breast reconstructive surgeries deemed
to be medically necessary, including areolar reconstruction, when not related to
génde} transition. To exclude identical procedures for transgender individuals based
n‘ierelyi on their medical necessity being due to gender dyspharia as opposed to
other diag nases, "systematically denies services and treatments for transgender
individ:uals and is prohibited discrimination on the basis of sex” in violation of
Section 1557. "

! .

Becauqie WoellCares blanket exclusion of transition-related healthcare is unlawful
i
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under thfa Affordable Care Act, WeIICare must evaluate my request for

precertlf}catlon on the ba5|5 of medical necessity.
|

| meet criteria for medical necessity both generally and as it pertains to gender

reas::sig nment surgery {GRS. | meet and exceed the criteria as set forth by the World
Professu:‘nal Association for Transgender Health (W PATH) as well as for a diagnosis
of Gender Dysphoria as set forth by the DSM 5. Further it is the clinical opinion of
my therqplst aM.Ss, LPCC who possesses all of the characteristics of a Qualified
Mental Health Professional defined by WPATH, that surgery is the appropriate
treatmeTt for my long- standlng Gender Dysphoria and that my mental health and
overall well-being would, ,greatly benefit from this procedure (see attached letter of
referrai Dirom Sydney I(mg)

I reiquest that WeliCare, in recognizing its bianket exclusion of transition related
healthcare coverage as unlawful, approve my request for precertification for codes
on the basis of medical necessity as described in WellCares Enrollee Handbook and
spec1flcqlly confirmed by; my medical providers in accordance with the general
requirements for medical necessity defined by WeliCare.

WeliCarIs Enrollee Handbook states, “We approve care that is medically needed or
necessa ry. This means the care, services, or supplies give you the treatment you
neéd. The care, services, jor supplies must:

» Be right for your medical condition « Be care accepted by most doctors « Not be for

convenignce « Be in the right amount, at the right place, and at the right time « Be
saf;e for you

CI|n|calIy Appropriate We approve care that is clinically right or appropriate. This just

means the services or supplies you get are standard. Standards are set by national
gupdehn|es such as InterQual®.”

The reqi.uested pracedure meets WeliCares criteria for medically needed.
{ .
| |

. : 1
_Sincerely, (

b)6}

i

| 1
1

!

Wellcares member handbook states specifically that transgender surgeries are
excluded, which goes against the protections afforded to me by the ACA.

m— SR JET i e —————— s —
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W\ WeliCare

Beyond Healthcare, A Better You

PO Bax 31370
Tampa, FIL 334831-3370

KRISTEN MURFHY
432 16TH ST
ASHLAND, KY 41101

05/0472022

Notice of Adverse Benefit Determination

DOS:

Dear Provider:

We have taken the following action on your service request regarding the member noted above:

The request [or female to male breast reduction surgery-a surgery to remove a beeast is not
approved. The service is not covered by your Plan. Please follow up with your doctor for a new
referral for a covered service.

Criteria Referenced: Kentucky Enrollee Handbook, Section: Services Not Covered by WellCure
of Kentucky

You may request a copy of the clinien! criteria, benefit provision or ether information used to
make this decision by calling Provider Scrvices at 1-877-389-9457 (TTY/TDD: 711) Monday
through Friday, 7 a.m. 1o 7 p.m. EST,

This does not incan that you cannot provide the service(s) you requested. 1t means you may not
be rcimbursed for the service(s).

YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO ASK FOR AN APPEAL OF THiIS DECISION,
If you do not agree with this decision, you may appeal. Your request must be submitted within
sixty (60) calendar days of the date of this notice. We will issue an appeul decision in writing

within thirty (30} calendar days of receiving the appeat request, unless we need a [ourtcen {14)
calendar day cxtension. If we need an exfension, we will request it from you,

PRO_86232E State Approvad 09202021

©WellCars 2021 KY1CADLTRB6232E_0000

New Section 3 Page 26



W\ WellCare

Beyond Healthcare. A Better You
PO Box 31370
Tampa. FL 136)1-2¥70

To appeal this decision. please tax or mail your request fo:
WellCare of Kentucky Attn: Appeals Department
P.Q. Bax 436000

Louisville, KY 40253
Fax: 1-866-201-0657

For assistance in filing an appcal call Provider Services at 1-877-389-9457 {1TY/I'DD: 711)
Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. EST.

Sincerely,

Utilization Management Department

PRO_86232E Slate Approved 09202021
EWellCare 2021 KY1CADLTRO6232E_(0D00

New Section 3 Page 27
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W WellCare

Beyond Healthcare. A Better Yow

PD Box 31370
Tampa, FL 13831-3370

LEXINGTON SURGERY CENTER LTD
2115 HARRODSBURG RD
LEXINGTON, KY 40504

05/04/2022

Notice of Adverse Benefit Determination

Name: [bX6)

Dear Provider:

We have taken the following action on your service request regarding the member noted above:

The request for female o male breast reduction surgery-a surgery 10 remiove a breast is not
approved. The service is not covered by your Plan. Please follow up with your doctor for a new
refcrral for a covered service.

Criterin Referenced: Kentucky Enrollee Handbook, Scction: Services Not Covered by WellCare..
of Kentucky '

You may request a copy of the clinica! crileria, benefit provision or other information used to
make this decision by calling Provider Services at 1-877-389-9457 (T TY/TDD: 711) Monday
through Friday, 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. EST.

This does not mean that you cannot provide the service(s) you requested. It means you may not
be reimbursed for the service(s).

YOU HAYE THE RIGHT TO ASK FOR AN APPEAL OF THIS DECISION.
If you do not agree with this decision, you may appeal. Your request must be submitted within
sixty (60) calendar days of the date of this notice. We will issue an appeal decision in writing

within thirly (30} calendar days of receiving the appeal request, unless we need o fourieen (14)
calendar day extension, If we need an extension, we will request it from you,

PRO_86232E Stale Approved 09202021

&WeliCars 2021 KY1CADLTR86232E_0000

New Section 4 Page 29


https://refcrr.11

W\ WellCare

Beyond Healthcare. A Better You
FO Bax 31370
Tampa, FL 33631-2310

To appeal this decision, please fax or mail your request to:
WellCare of Kentucky Attn: Appeals Department
P.0O. Box 436000

Louisville, KY 40253
Fax: 1-866-201-0657

For assistancce in filing an appeal call Provider Scrvices at 1-877-389-9457 (11Y/TDD: 711}
Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. EST.

Sincerely,

Utilization Management Department

PRO_86232E State Approved 09202021
SWellCare 2021 KY{1CADLTR86232E_0000

New Scction 4 Page 30
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W WellCare

Beyond Healthcare. A Better You

PQ Box 31370
Tampa, FL 13831-3370

DAVID DRAKE
2195 HARRODSBURG RD 2ND FLOOR
LEXINGTON, KY 40504

05/0472022

Notice of Adverse Benefit Determination

Name{P}5)
Member ID:
Reference #: [D)5)

DOB:[b)E}
DOS:

Dear Provider:

We have teken the following action on your service request regarding the member noted above:

The request for female to male breast reduction surgery-a surgery to remove a breast is not
approved. The scrvice is not covered by your Plan. Please follow up with your doctor for a new
referral for a covercd service.

Criterin Referenced: Kentucky Enroliee Handbook, Scction: Services Not Covered by WellCure
of Kenlucky

You may request a copy of the clinical critcria, bencfit provision or other informaticn used o
make this decision by calling Provider Services at 1-877-389-9457 (TTY/TDD: 711} Monday
through Friday, 7 a.m. to 7 p.ra. EST.

This does not inean thal you cunnot provide the service(s) you requested. i means you may not
be reimbursed for the service(s).

YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO ASK FOR AN APPEAL OF THIS DECISION,
If you do not agree with this decision, you may appeal. Your request must be submitted within
sixty (60} calondar days of the date of this notice. We will issuc an appeal decision in writing

within thirly (30) calendar days of receiving the appeal request, unless we need a fourteen {14)
calendar day extension. if we need an extension, we will request it from you,

PRO_86232E State Approved 09202021

EWellCare 2021 KY1CADLTRB6232E_0000
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W WellCare

Beyond Healthczre. A Better You.
PO Box 1370
Tampa, Ft 13831-3370

To appeal this decision, please lax or mail your request to:
WellCare of Kentucky Attn: Appeals Department
P.0. Box 436000

Louisville, KY 40253
Fax: 1-866-201-0657

For assistance in filing an appeal call Provider Scrvices at 1-877-389-9457 (TTY/TDD: 7i1)
Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. EST.

Sincerely,

Utilization Management Depariment

PRO_86232E State Approved 09202021
EWellCare 2021 KY1CADLTR86232E_0000

New Section 5 Page 33



W\ WellCare

Beyond Hezlthcare. A Better You.
P 0 Box 436000
Loulsville, KY 40253

Notice of Appeal Decigion

b)(6}

June 2, 2022

Re:@® ]

D#PO |

File #:(0© |

Request: Reduction Mammoplasty CPT

()6}

Dear

On May 4, 2022, we received your appeal. This appeal was about: Reduction
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
17:020 and 907 KAR 3:130, “‘medically necessary” means:

« Care or supplies required to meet an enrollee’s medical needs
e The care or supplies must:

CAD_71272E_ State Approved 05152020
©WellCare 2021 KY1CADLTR71272E_0000



Be right for the enrollee’s medical condition;

Be care accepted by most doctors;

Not be for convenience;

Be in the right amount, at the right place and at the right time; and
Be safe for the enroliee.

0 00O0O0

This decision will not affect the services or supplies you may need in the future.

You, your doctor, or someone you choose can get a copy of any paperwork used to
makse this decision. You can get this at no charge. Call 1-877-389-9457 or write to:

WellCare of Kentucky
Attn: Appeals Department
P.O. Box 436000
Louisville, KY 40253

We also want to let you know that, per 307 KAR 17:035, if your provider gets an
adverse final decision of a denial, in whole or in pan, of a health service or claim for
reimbursement related to this service, he or she may ask for an external, independent
third-party review. Your provider must first complete an intemal appeal with WellCare
of Kentucky. Provider requests for external review will only be considered for dates of
service on or after December 1, 2016.

if an external, independent third-party review is held, your provider and WellCare of
Kentucky may, depending on the outcome of this review, ask for an administrative
_hearing. This is per 807 KAR 17:040.

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
our decision. You, a friend, a relative, [awyer, or someone you choose may ask for a
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
may have to pay for these services if the hearing officer agrees with WeliCare that the
services are not needed.

CAD_71272E_State Approved 05152020
@WellCare 2021 KY1CADLTR71272E_0000



You may request a State Fair Hearing at this address:

Office of the Ombudsman
Office of the Ombudsman and Administrative Review
Attn: Medical Appeals and Reconsiderations
275 East Maln Street, 2E-O
Frankfort, KY 40621
Phone: 502-564-5497 (TTY 711)
Fax: 502-564-9523

Contact us or the Kentucky Department for Medicaid Services if:
s You want to know if you can ask for a State Fair Hearing on the denial.
= You want to know if you can still get the care you asked for.
= You want to learn more.

Other things to know:
* You do not have to pay for the State Fair Hearing.
» You have the right to name someone you trust to file a State Fair Hearing for
you. You must give the person pemission in writing to do so.

Questions? Just c¢all Customer Service at 1-877-389-9457. TTY users may call 711,
We are here to help you. You can call Monday-Friday, 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.

Sincerely,

Appeals Department
mbsharp

Cc: Dr. David Drake

CAD_71272E_State Approved 05152020
@WellCare 2021 KY1CADLTR71272E_0000



Discrimination is Against the Law

WellCare of Kentucky complies with applicable Federai civil rights laws and does not
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, or sex. WellCare of
Kentucky does not exclude people or treat them differently because of race, color, national
origin, age, disabitity, or sex.

WellCare of Kentucky provides free aids and services to people with disabilities to
communicate effectively with us, such as:

» Qualified sign language interpreters

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

» Qualified interpreters

« Information written in other languages

If you need these services, call us toll-free at 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 7). We're here for your
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

EEO/Civil Rights Compliance Branch

Cabinet for Health and Family Services

Office of Human Resource Management

275 E Main St, Mail Stop 5C-D

Frankfort, KY 40621

Telephone: 1-502-564-7770

Fax: 1-502-564-3129

Email/ Web: https:/ /chfs.ky.gov/Pages/civil-rights.aspx

You can file a grievance in person or by mail, fax, or email. If you need help fiting a grievance,
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
©WellCare 2021+ KY1CADLTR71272E_0000


https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf
https://chfs.ky.gov/Pages/civil-rights.aspx

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
200 Independence Avenue

SW Room 509F

HHH Building

Washington, D.C. 20201

Telephone: 1-800-368-1019, 1-800-537-7657 (TDD)

Complaint forms are available at http://www.hhs.gov/acr/office/file/index.html.

ATTENTION: if you speak English, language assistance services,
free of charge, are available to you. Call 1-877-389-9457

(TTY: 7N).

ATENCION: Si habla espariol, tiene a su disposicién servicios
gratuitos de asistencia linguistica. Llame al 1-877-389-9457

(TTY: 7).

AR NMREERARRP  BAILRBEEESEY
ARFE - 55BUE 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 1) °

ACHTUNG: Wenn Sie Deutsch sprechen, stehen lhnen

kostenlos sprachliche Hilfsdienstleistungen zur Verftigung.
Rufnummer: 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

CHU Y: Néu ban néi Tiéng Viét, ¢d cac dich vy hd trg ngon
ngl mién phi danh cho ban. Goi 56 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).
JLail Oloxall ¢ 3l dsgild] Sasluall Cslous O dall [S3 Sraoads CuS 13} rdbsgorda
(TN TTY) 1-877-389-9457 ¢5»
ATTENTION : Si vous parlez frangais, des services d'aide
linguistique vous sont proposés gratuitement. Appelez le
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).
zol: SHI02 ALBSHAIE B, 2l0] XIR! MH|AE 222
0|25HAl 4= USLICEH 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: TIH2E 3|5
FHAL .

CAD_71272E_State Approved 05152020
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http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html

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

AT IR TIATES AGTe AATETE T TUTEH! ATHar
WTNT GgTIaT QaTgL 1@ TTHT Sq99d & | B A8
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 71)|

XIYYEEFFANNAA: Afaan dubbattu Oroomiffa, tajaajila
gargaarsa afaanii, kanfaltiidhaan ala, ni argama. Bilbilaa
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

BHAMAHWE: ECcan Bbl roBOpnTE Ha PYCCKOM A3bIKE,
TO BaM JOCTYNHb BecnnatHbie yCnyrn nepesoja. 3soHuTe
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

jezicke pomocdi dostupne su vam besplatno. Nazovite
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

ARFER: BRFZ2BSNS5E  BROSEXE%
CFIROIETET 2 1-877-389-9457 (TTY:- TN F T ~ H
BREICTTEBLS L.

CAD_71272E_State Approved 05152020
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\\WeilCare‘

Beyond Healthcare. A Better You,
P.0. Box 438000
Louisvilie, KY 40253

Notice of Appeal Decision

Dr. David Drake
2195 Harrodsburg Road, 2nd Floor
Lexington, KY 40504

June 2, 2022

Re: (b)(B}

ID# O ]
File #: {*© |

Request: Reduction Mammoplasty CPT

b)(6}

Dear

On May 4, 2022, we received your appeal. This appeal was about: Reduction
Mammoplasty.

An Appeals Review Nurse looked at 'your request.

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
17:020 and 907 KAR 3,130, “medically necessary” means:

+ Care or supplies required to meet an enrollee’s medical needs
¢ The care or supplies must:

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

OO0 00 0

This decision will not affect the services or supplies you may need in the future.

You, your doctor, or someone you choose can get a copy of any paperwork used to
make this decision. You can get this at no charge. Call 1-877-389-8457 or write to:

WellCare ot Kentucky
Attn: Appeals Department
P.O. Box 436000
Louisville, KY 40253

We also want to let you know that, per 907 KAR 17:035, if your provider gets an
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
service on or after December 1, 2016. :

If an external, independent third-party review is held, your provider and WellCare of
Kentucky may, depending on the outcome of this review, ask for an administrative
hearing. This is per 807 KAR 17.040.

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
807 KAR 17:010.

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
Altn: Medical Appeals and Reconsiderations
275 East Main Street, 2E-O
Frankfort, KY 40621
Phone: 502-564-5497 (TTY 711)
Fax: 502-564-9523

Contact us or the Kentucky Department for Medicaid Services if:
=  You want {o know if you can ask for a State Fair Hearing on the denial.
= You want to know if you can still get the care you asked for.
* You want to learn more.

Other things to know:
s You do not have to pay for the State Fair Hearing.
=  You have the right to name someone you trust to file a State Fair Hearing for
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

SW Room 50%F

HHH Building

Washington, D.C. 20201

Telephone: 1-800-368-1019, 1-800-537-7697 (TDD)

Complaint forms are available at http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html.

ATTENTION: If you speak English, language assistance services,
free of charge, are available to you. Call 1-877-389-9457

(TTY: 71).

ATENCION: Si habla espafiol, tiene a su disposicion servicios

gratuitos de asistencia linguistica. Llame al 1-877-389-9457
(TTY: 71).

IR MREEREEP Bl BEEESEY
ARIE o BT 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711) °

ACHTUNG: Wenn Sie Deutsch sprechen, stehen lhnen

kostenlos sprachliche Hilfsdienstleistungen zur Verfugung.
Rufnummer: 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 71).

CHU Y: Néu ban nai Tiéng Viét, co cac dich vy hd trg ngdn
ng{ mién phi-danh cho ban. Goi s6 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 71).
Juail . lorally el 31ens drgitlll Baslucal! Glods Q3 (Rl S5 G S 13] :dlbgonle
(TN TTY) 1-877-389-9457 ¢3»
ATTENTION : Si vous parlez frangais, des services d'aide
linguistique vous sont proposés gratuitement. Appelez le
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711},
9| 0|8 A 8StA = 4%, 80 X MH|AE FE=
0|25 &= UELICH 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: TN)H 2 T35l
THAL.

CAD_71272E_State Approved 05152020
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www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html

Opmierksamkeet: Wann du Deitsch (Pennsylvania German/
Dutch) schwetzscht, kannscht du mitaus Koschte ebber gricke,
ass dihr helft mit die englisch Schprooch. Ruf selli Nummer uff
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 71I).

AT SR TUTES AT TGS T qILEHY AHat
YT FETAAT JATEE ATX[ETH TIHT ITAGY F | B IR
1-877-389-9457 {TTY: 7T)!

XIYYEEFFANNAA: Afaan dubbattu Oroomiffa, tajaajila
gargaarsa afaanii, kanfaltiidhaan ala, ni argama. Bilbilaa
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 71).

BHUMAHMWE: ECnu Bbl roBopuUTe Ha PyCCKOM A3bIKE,
TO BaM AOCTYNHbI BecnnaTHble ycnyrn nepesoaa. 3BoHUTE
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

PAUNAWA: Kung nagsasalita ka ng Tagalog, maaari kang
gumamit ng mga serbisyo ng tulong sa wika nang walang
bayad. Tumawag sa 1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

ICITONDERWA: Nimba uvuga lkirundi, uzohabwa serivisi zo
gufasha mu ndimi, ku buntu. Woterefona 1-877-389-9457

(TTY:-7N).

OBAVJESTENJE: Ako govorite srpsko-hrvatski, usluge
jezicke pomodéi dostupne su vam besplatno. Nazovite
1-877-389-9457 (TTY: 711).

FEREIR HABZHESNSHE - BROSHEIER:
CFRIBAWEEITE T 21-877-389-9457 (TTY: TN X T~ H
BREICTITEBLSTZSL
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Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or need any further information. Thank
you in advance for the care that you will provide to Hiara.

Sydney T. King, M.S., LPCC Sydney@TheSelfCollective.com
Ohio #E.2001814 Ph: 614-427-0875
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W\ WellCare

Beyond Healthcare. A Better You.
P.O. Box 436000
Louisville, KY 40253

Notice of Appeal Decision

b)(6}

June 2, 2022

o AN
|D#:|(b)(5) |

File #{0)6) |
Request: Reduction Mammoplasty CPT
19318

Dear”®

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
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04/15/2022

To:

UK HealthCare

1000 S. Limestone
University of Kentucky
Lexington, KY 40536

Re:

Sydney T. King, M.S., LPCC
The Self Collective, LLC
Sydnev@TheSelfCollective.com
Ph: 614-427-0875; Fax: 614-421-7987

()6}

Reason for Referral:

()6}

Dr. David Drake and Team:

()6}

This is a letter of support for

()6}



mailto:Sydney@TheSelfCollective.com

()6}




b)(6}

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or need any further information. Thank
you in advance for the care that you will provide to Hiara.

AT/

Sydney T. King, M.S., LPCC Sydney@TheSelfCollective.com
Ohio #E.2001814 Ph: 614-427-0875
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(D}(6) HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP

From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E90EF156EDQ5483F959D8C4039D9B906-LORDEN, SUS
{ibiis) P
Mitchell, Steven M (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT}/cn=Recipients/cn=userf53b56e8 «Steven.Mitchell@HHS.GOV>;

To: Garcia, Art (HHS/OCR} /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=3fel15a704cd4274bb5916d41a1923a9-Garcia, Art
<Art.Garcia@HHS.GOV >

(D)6} HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangeLabs/cu=Exchange Administrative Group
CcC: " FYDIBOHFZ35PDLT Y/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdec12ad0974eacababe032f2b37¢91-Dekervor, D
b)(8)

Subject: MW Region - GAC complaints
Date: 2022/11/08 10:30:50

Priority: Normal

Type: Note

Good morning,

Thanks for sending over new GAC complaints.[/®)

()5}

I’'m not sure if you want others to join the call, but it looks like the following times are available next

week. Do any of these work? Thanks,

Wed. 11/16: 10-10:30am ET/9-9:30am CT
Fri. 11/18: 10-10:30am ET/9-9:30am CT; 11-11:30 ET/10-10:30 CT; 12-12:30pm ET/11-11:30am CT

()5}
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From: Garcia, Art (HHS/QCR) <Art.Garcia@HHS.GOV>
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harmful to the psychological development of young people and responsible, for a very

important part, of the growing sense of gender incongruence.”

51





https://www.bbc.com/news/uk-58453250
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7084367
https://apa.org/pi/lgbc/publications/therapeutic
http://www
https://www.academie






https://palveluvalikoima.fi/documents/1237350/22895008/Summary_minors_en



https://palveluvalikoima.fi/documents/1237350/22895008/Summary_minors_en
https://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/2019/12/12/childrens-transgender-clinic-hi



https://palveluvalikoima.fi/documents/1237350/22895838/Summary+transgender



www.england.nhs.uk/2020/09/nhs-announces
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2020/sep/22/nhs-to-hold-review-into



https://www.telegraph.co.uk/politics/2018/09/16/minister-orders-inquiry-4000
https://pedsendo.org/about-pes
www.endocrine.org/advocacy/position
https://ttps://www.theguardian.com
https://arms.nice.org.uk/resources/hub/1070905/attachment



www.sbu.se/en/publications/sbu-bereder/gender
https://www.sbu.se/en/publica



www.evidence.nhs.uk
www.ad.nl/nijmegen/dringend
www.socialstyrelsen.se




Case 2:22-cv-00184-LCB-SRW Document 69-2 Filed 05/02/22 Page 65 of 106

APPENDICES

Appendix 1

Curriculum Vita

Appendix 2
Peer-reviewed article:
Cantor, J. M. (2020). Transgender and gender diverse children and

adolescents: Fact-checking of AAP policy. Journal of Sex & Mariial
Therapy, 46, 307-313. doi: 10.1080/0092623X.2019.1698481

Appendix 3

The Outcomes Studies of Childhood-Onset Gender Dysphoria
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Principal Investigator:  James M. Cantor

Co-Investigator: Ray Blanchard

Title: Morphological and neuropsychological correlates of pedophilia
Agency: Canadian Institutes of Health Research (CIHR)

Funds: $196,902 / 3 years (April, 2006)
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CLINICAL LICENSURE/REGISTRATION

Certificate of Registration, Number 3793
College of Psychologists of Ontario, Ontario, Canada
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American Psychological Association, Division 44
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“TA of the Year Award,” from the McGill Psychology Undergraduate Student Association
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Appendix
Count Group Study
26 gay* Lebovitz, P. 5. {1972). Feminine behaviar in boys: Aspects of its outcome.
4/16  trans-fcrassdress Americon Journal of Psychiatry, 128, 1283-1289.
10/16  straight*/uncertain
2/16  trans- Zuger, B. {1978). Effeminate behavior present in boys from childhood:
2/16  uncertain Ten additional years of follow-up. Comprefiensive Psychiafry, 19, 363-3a9.
12/16  gay
09 trans- Money, 1., & Russo, A. J. (1979). Homosexual cutcome of discordant
9/9 gay gender identity/role: Longitudinal follow-up, Journal of Pediatric Psychology, 4, 2941,
2/45  trans-/crossdress Zuger, B. {1984). Early effeminate behavior in boys: Outcome and
10/45  uncertain significance far homosexuality. Journal of Nervous and Mental Disease, 172, 90-97.
33/45 gay
110 trans- Davenport, . W. {1986). A follow-up study of 10 feminine boys. Archives of
2110 gay Sexuaf Behavior, 15, 511=517.

3/10  uncertain
4/10  straight

1/44  trans- Green, R. (1987). The "sissy boy syndrome" and the devefopment of homosexuality.
43/44  cis- New Haven, CT: Yale University Press.
0/8  trans- Kosky, R. 1. (1987). Gender-disorderad children: Does inpatient treatment help?
8/8 cis- Medical Journal of Austrafia, 146, 565-56%9.
21/54  trans- Wallier, M. S. C, & Cohen-Kettenis, P. T. (2008). Psychosexual outcome of gender-dysphoric
33/54  cis- children. Journiof of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiotry, 47,
1413-1423.
325 trans- Drummond, K. D.. Bradley, 5. )., Badali-Petersan, M., & Zucker, K. J. {2008). A follow-up study
6/25  leshian/bi- of gitls with gender identity disorder. Developmental Psycholagy, 44, 34-45.
16/25  straight
17/139  trans- Singh, D. (2012}. A folfow-up study of boys with gender identity disorder. Unpublished doctoral
122/139  cis- dissertation, University of Toronto.
47127 trans- Steensma, T. D., McGuire, J. K., Kreukels, B. P. C,, Beekman, A. 1., & Cohen-Kettenis, P. T. {2013).
80/127 cis- Factors associated with desistence and persistence of childhood gender dysphoria:

A guantitative follaw-up study. Journaf of the American Academy of Child and Adofescent
Psychiatry, 52, 582-590.

*For brevity, the list uses "gay” for “gay and cis-", “straight” for “straight and cis-*, etc.
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

11/32





https://vimeo.com/239131108/3387c80652

















































Case 2:22-cv-00184-LCB-SRW Document 69-2 Filed 05/02/22 Page 95 of 106

CLINICAL LICENSURE/REGISTRATION

Certificate of Registration, Number 3793
College of Psychologists of Ontario, Ontario, Canada

AWARDS AND HONORS
2017 Elected Fellow, Association for the Treatment of Sexual Abusers

2011 Howard E. Barbaree Award for Excellence in Research
Centre for Addiction and Mental Health, Law and Mental Health Program

2004 fMRI Visiting Fellowship Program at Massachusetts General Hospital
American Psychological Association Advanced Training Institute and NIH

1999-2001 CAMH Post-Doctoral Research Fellowship
Centre for Addiction and Mental Health Foundation and Ontario Ministry of Health

1998 Award for Distinguished Contribution by a Student
American Psychological Association, Division 44

1995 Dissertation Research Grant
Society for the Scientific Study of Sexuality

1994-1996 McGill University Doctoral Scholarship

1994 Award for Outstanding Contribution to Undergraduate Teaching
“TA of the Year Award,” from the McGill Psychology Undergraduate Student Association

29/32





www.cnn.com/2017

Case 2:22-cv-00184-LCB-SRW Document 69-2 Filed 05/02/22 Page 97 of 106

1 Jul 2016. Debusschere, B. Niet iedereen die kinderporno kijkt, is een pedofiel: De mythes rond
pedofilie ontkracht. De Morgen.

12 Apr 2016. O’Connor, R. Terence Martin: The Tasmanian MP whose medication "turned him
into a paedophile'. The Independent.

8 Mar 2016. Bielski, Z. ‘The most viscerally hated group on earth’: Documentary explores how
intervention can stop pedophiles. The Globe and Mail.

1 Mar 2016. Elmhirst, S. What should we do about paedophiles? The Guardian.

24 Feb 2016. The man whose brain tumour ‘turned him into a paedophile’. The Independent.

24 Nov 2015. Byron, T. The truth about child sex abuse. BBC Two.

20 Aug 2015. The Jared Fogle case: Why we understand so little about abuse. Washington Post.

19 Aug 2015. Blackwell, T. Treat sex offenders for impotence to keep them out of trouble.
Canadian psychiatrist says. National Post.

2 Aug 2015. Menendez, ]. BBC News Hour. BRC World Service.

13 Jul 2015. The nature of pedophilia. BBC Radio 4.

9 Jul 2015. The sex-offender test: How a computerized assessment can help determine the fate of
men who’ve been accused of sexually abusing children. The Atlantic.

10 Apr 2015. NWT failed to prevent sex offender from abusing stepdaughter again. CBC News.

10 Feb 2015. Savage, D. “The ethical sadist.” In Savage Love. The Stranger.

31 Jan 2015. Begrip voor/van pedofilie [Understanding pedophilial. de Volkskrant.

9 Dec 2014. Carey, B. When a rapist’s weapon is a pill. New York Times.

1 Dec 2014. Singal, J. Can virtual reality help pedophiles? New York Magazine.

17 Nov2014. Say pedofile, busco aydua. E/ Pais.

4 Sep 2014. Bom that way? Ideas, with Paul Kennedv. CBC Radio One.

27 Aug 2014. Interrogating the statistics for the prevalence of paedophilia. BBC.

25 Jul 2014. Stephenson, W. The prevalence of paedophilia. BBC World Service.

21 Jul 2014. Hildebrandt, A. Virtuous Pedophiles group gives support therapy cannot. CBC.

26 Jan 2014. Paedophilia a result of faulty wiring, scientists suggest. Daily Mail.

22 Dec 2013. Kane, L. Is pedophilia a sexual orientation? Toronto Star.

21 Jul 2013. Miller, L. The turn-on switch: Fetish theory, post-Freud. New York Magazine.

1 Jul 2013. Morin, H. Pédophilie: la difficile guéte d'une origine biologique. Le Monde.

2 Jun 2013. Malcolm, L. The psychology of paedophilia. Australian National Radio.

1 Mar 2013. Kay, J. The mobbing of Tom Flanagan is unwarranted and cruel. National Post.

6 Feb 2013. Bov Scouts board delays vote on lifting ban on gavs. 1. 4. Times.

31 Aup 2012. CNN Newsroom interview with Ashleigh Banfield. CAN.

24 Jun 2012. CNN Newsroom interview with Don Lemon. CAN.

31/32








https://www.tandfonIine.com/action/journal
https://doi.org/10.1080/0092623X.2019.1698481
https://www.tandfonline.com/loi/usmt20



mailto:jamescantorphd@gmail.com
https://doi.org/10.1080/0092623X.2019.1698481












https://2016;55(3):155-156.e3




Case 2:22-cv-00184-LCB-SRW Document 69-2 Filed 05/02/22 Page 106 of 106
JOURNAL OF 5EX & MARITAL THERAPY @ 213

Appendix
Count Group Study
26 gay* Lebovitz, P. 5. {1972). Feminine behaviar in boys: Aspects of its outcome.
4116 trans-fcrassdress Americon Journal of Psychiatry, 128, 1283-1289.
10/16  straight*/uncertain
2/16  trans- Zuger, B. {1978). Effeminate behavior present in boys from childhood:
2/16  uncertain Ten additional years of follow-up. Comprefiensive Psychiafry, 19, 363-34a9.
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
16/45  uncertain significance far homosexuality. Journal of Nervous and Mental Disease, 172, 90-97.
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
122/139  cis- dissertation, University of Toronto,
47127 trans- Steensma, T. D., McGuire, J. K., Kreukels, B. P. C,, Beekman, A. 1., & Cohen-Kettenis, P. T. {2013).
80/127 cis- Factors associated with desistence and persistence of childhood gender dysphoria:

A guantitative follaw-up study. Journat of the American Academy of Child and Adofescent
Psychiatry, 52, 582-590.

*For brevity, the list uses "gay” for “gay and cis-", “straight” for “straight and cis-*, etc.
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